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ORDINANCE NO. 2018-02 

AN ORDINANCE . OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
CAREFREE, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING AMENDMENTS 
TO CHAPTER 5 .OF THE CAREFREE, ARIZONA TOWN CODE; PROVIDING 
FOR REPEAL OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CAREFREE, ARIZONA 
TOWN CODE;· PROVIDING FOR SEPARABILITY; ADOPTION AND 
APPROVAL BY THE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN AS· 
REQUIRED BY LAW AND DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK OF THE· TOWN OF 
CAREFREE TO INCORPORATE THIS AMENDMENT INTO THE CAREFREE, 
ARIZONA TOWN CODE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN . . 

OF CAREFREE, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The Mayor and Common Council deem it necessary, in order to 
conserve, · promote, and protect the public · health,. safety and 
welfare,· to amend that certain document known a~ the Town of 
Carefree Zoning ·ordinance . 

Section 2: All ordinances and portions of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, or inconsistent with the regulations of 
this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent necessary to give 
this Ordinance full force and effect 

Section 3: The Amendments are made to Chapter 5 Health and Safety, 
Amended as follows (additions are shown in double underline, and 
deleted language js crossed out): · 

Article 5-6 . 

Section 5-6-1 
Section5-6-2 
Section 5-~-3 
Section 5-6-4 
S5iqtion 5-6-5 
Section 5-6-6 
Section 5-6-7 
Syction 5-6-8 
Section 5-6-9 
Section 5-6- l O 

Section 5-6-11 
Section 5-6-12 
Section 5-6-13 
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ILLICIT DISCHARGE AND C01''NECTION 

Pumose and Intent 
Definitions 
Annlicability 
Responsibility for Administration 
Severability 
Dischm:ge Prohibitions 
Watercourse Protection 
Industrial or Construction Activity Discharges 

· £ompliance Monitoring 
Requirement to Prevent, Control. and Reduce Stormwpter 
Pollutq.g.ts by the Use gt: Best Management :eractices. 
Notific;;5';tion of Spills 

· Violations. Enforcement And [!enalties 
Ao0eal of Notice Of Violation 
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Section 5-6~ 14 Enforcement Measures after Appeal 
Section 5-6-15 Cost of Abatement Of The Violation 
Section 5-6-16 Violations Deemed A Public Nuisance 
Section 5-6-17 Remedies Not Exclusive 

Section 5-6-1 PURPOSE AND INTENT 

The ouroose of this ordinance is to .provide for the health. safety. and general 
welfare of the citizens of· Carefree through the regulation of non-storm water 
discharges · to the storm drainage system to the maximum extent practicable as 
required by federal and state law. This ordinance establishes methods for 
controlling the introduction of pollutants" into the municipal separate sform 
sewer system CMS4) in order to comply with requirements of the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination . System · (NPDES) permit process. The obiectives of this 
ordinance are: 

A. To regulate the contribution of pollutants to the MS4 by illicit storm water 
discharges by any user. · 

B. To prohibit illicit connections and discharges to the MS4. 

C. To establish legal authority to carry out all insnection. surveillance, 
monitoring. and enforcement procedures necessary to ensure . compliance 
with this ordinance. · 

Section 5-6-2 DEFINITIONS 

A. For the purposes Of this ordinance, the following shall mean: "ADEO" means 

Arizona Deoartment of Environmental Quality. 

B. "'Authorized Enforcement Agency." ine'ans employees or designees of the 
Town. 

C. "Best Management· Practices CBMPs)" means schedules of activities. 
nr9hibitions of practices. general good housekeening practices, pollution 
prevention and educational practices. maiiitenance · procedures. and other 
management practices to prevent. or reduce the discharge of oollutants 
directly or indirectly to storm water. receiving waters. ot storm water 
conveyance systems. BMPs also include treatment practices. operating 

. procedures. and practices to . control site runoff spillage or leaks. 
sludge or water disposal. or drainage from raw materials storage. 

D. ''Clean Water Act/' means the federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 
§ set seq.) and any subsequent amendments thereto. 

E. "Construction Activity" means activities subiect to NPDES Construction 
Permits. These include construction projects resulting in land disturbance 
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of one acre or more. Such activities include but are not limited to clearing 
and grubbing, gradiri&, excavating and demolition. · 

F. "Facility" or "Actiyity" means any NPDES noipt source" or anv ot~~ 
facility or activity (including land or appurtenances thereto) tijat is subiectto 
regulation under the NPDES program. 

G. "Hazardoll§ ·Material". means any material. including any substayc~ 
waste or combination thereof. which because of it§ guantity,. c~ntratjon. 
or physical. chemical, or infectious characteristics mav cause, or significantl,x 
contribute to. a substantial present or ootential hazard_m__burnan health, 
safety2 pronerty, or the environment when imnroperly treated. stored. 
transoorted; dispose..d of. or otherwise managed. 

· H. "Illegal Discharge" means any direct or indirect non-storm water discharge 
to the storm drain system except as exSfrnpted in Section 8 of this ordinance. 

I. "Illicit Connection'' is defined as either of 
the following: 

l. Any drain or conveyance. whether on the surface or subsurface 
that allows an illegal discharge to ~nter the · storm drain system 
including but ngt limited to any conveyances that allow any non­
.storm water discharge including sewage, m;ocess wastemiter.; and 
wash water to enter the storm drain .system and . any connections to 
l;be .. stonn drain system from indoor drains and sinks. regBrdless of 
whether said drain or connection · had been previously allowed1 

pen;pitted. or aporoved by an authorized enforcement agency, Oh 

2. Apy drain or coill!:eyance connected from a L(Ommercial or industrial 
land use to the storm system that has not been documented in plans. 
m3ps. or eauival~nt records and approved by flP authorized fl:t~ency. 

J. "Industrial ActiyitV" means activities subiect to NPDES Ind~f}l Storm 
Water Pennits as defined in 40 CFR Section 122.26(b)04). 

K. "Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System CMS4 )" means the system of 
. conveyances <including sidewalks. roads '\ivith drairuJ.ge systems. municipal 
streets. catch basins. curbs. gutters. ditches, man-made channels, or storm 
drains) m\<ned and orerated by the Town of Carefree and designed or used 
for colle9tionor conveying storm water. and that is not used for collection or 
convevmg sewage. 

L. "National Pollutant Qischarge Elimination System CNPDES) Storm Water 
Discharge Permit" m e a n s a nennit i s s u e d by EPA. through t he 
Arizona g e p a r t m e n t o f Environmental Quality, that authorizes . the 
discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States, whetber the permit is 
applicable on an individual. gro:up. or general area-\\ide basis. 
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M. "Non-Stonn Water Discharge" means any discharge to the storm drain 
system that is pot composed entirely of storm water. . 

N. "Person" means .. any individual, ·association, organization1 partnership. firm. 
£Qm,oratiori or other entity recognized by law and aciing as either the ovmer or 
as the owner's agent. 

0. "Polltitant" .. means anythirur whi@ cause or contributes .to pollutiQD. 
Pollutants may include, but are not limited to: paints. varnishes. and solvents; 
oil and other automotive fluids; · non..,b.azardous liquid. swimming oool 
water. and solid wastes and yard ·wastes; refuse, rubbish. garbage. Utter or 
other discarded or abandoned Qbjects. ordinances. and· accumulations. so that 
same may cause or contribute to pollution: floatables: pesticides. herbicides, 
and fertilizers: hazardous substances and wastes: sewage. fecal colifonn and 
pathogens; dissolved and particulate metals; animal wastes; ·wastes and 
residues that result from construction a building or st:rllcture: and noxious or 
offensive matter of any kind. 

P. "Premises" means any building. lot parcel of land. or nortion of lmd 
whether improved pr· unimproved in~luding adiacent sidewalk;s and parking 
strios. 

Q. "Storm Drainage System'' means publicly-owned facilities by which stoim 
water is collected and/or. conveyed.· induding but not liinited to any roads 
with drainage. systems. municipal streets. gutters. curbs. inlets. piped storm 
drains, pumning facilities, retention and detentiqn basins. natural and hµmari­
made or altered drainage channels. reservoirs. and other drainage structures. 

R. "Storm Water" means any surface flow, runoff. and drainage consistim~ 
entirely of water form any form of natural precipitation. and :resulting from 
such orecipitation. 

S. ''Storm Water Management Plan" means a ·document which describes the 
Best Management Practices and activities to be imnlemented qy a· person 
or business to identify soiirces of OOJlution or cqntamination at a site and 
the actions to eliminate or reduce oollutant discharges to Storm Water, 
Storm Water Conveyance Systems. and/or Receiviru! Waters to the Maximum 
Extent Practicable. 

T.. "Wastewater,.' means any water or other liquid, other than uncontaminated 
storm water. discharged from a facility. 

U. "Watercourse" includszs and is not limited to the following: natural or 
artificial rivers. creeks. §ll:eams. washes. arroyos. recorded drainage 
easements, channels. ·ditchfs. canvons. ravines. sheet flows or other 
potential flood hazards OJ:. flood plain areas or other bodies of water having 
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banks and/or beds through wbjch waters flow on a recµrrent basis. 

Section 5-6-3 APPLICABILITY 

Tws ordinance shall apply to all water entering the stQrm drain system generated on 
w developed and undeveloped lands unless explicitly exempted by ADEO or the 
Town as applicable. · 

Section 5-6-4 RESPONSIBILITY FQR ADMINISTRATION 

The Town of Carefree shall administer. implement. and enforce the provisio_ns of 
this ordinance. Any powers granted or duties imoosed unon the Town of Carefree 
may· be delegated in writing by ·the Town A;dministrator to persons or entities 
acting ip the benefkial interest of or in the emnloy of thsr T gwn. 

Section 5-6-5 SEVEB.ABILfil 

. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any 
provision. c!au.se. sentence. or paragraph of this ordinance or the application thereQ{ 
19 any oerson. establishment. or circumstances shall be held invalid. such invalidity 
shall not affect the other provisions or awlication of this ordinance. 

Se£tion 5-6-6 -DISCHARGE PROIDBITIONS 

A. Prohibition of Illegal Discharges 

No per§OD shall throw. drain2 gr otherwiss discharge, cause. or allow 
others Linder its ·control· to . throw. drain, gr otherwise discharge into the 
MS4 any pollutants or ~aters containing any oollutants. other than storm 
water. 

The conu:hencement. conduct or continuance of any illegal discharge to the 
stomi drain system is orohibited except as described as follows: 

1. The • following discharn:es are exempt from discharge 
prohil?itions established by this · ordinance: water line flus~ 
landscape irrigation. diyerted stream flows. rising ground wate~1 
.uncontaminated ground water infiltration. uncontaminated pilmped 
ground water. di~charges from potable water sources, foundation 
drains. air conditioning condensation, irrigation water. springs, 
water from crawl space pumps, footing drains, lawn waterin~ 

. iruiiYidual residential car washing. flows from riparian habitats and 
wetlands. dechlorinated swimming pool discharges. and street· wash 
water. 

2. Discharges or flows from firefighting. and other discharge~ 

~ified in writing the Town of Carefree as being necessary to 
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orotect public health and safety. 

3. These orohibitions .$hall not apply to any non-storm water 
discharge oemritted under an NPDES permit waiver. or waste 
discharge order issued to the discharger and adgrinistered under the 
authority of the Unit)(d States Environmental Protection A~enc;¥ 
IBP A), provided that . the discharger is in full . compliance with 
all requirein~nts of the oennit waiver, or order · and ot}ler 
aPnlicable laws and regulation. and provided that· written approval 
has been granted for any discharge to the storm drain svst;m,1 

B. Prohibition o{ lJlicit Connection,~ 

1. The conmuction, use, Jru!J;ptenance or continued existence of illicit 
connections to the ~tonn drain system is prohi,bited. 

2. Ibis prohibition expressly includes. · without limitation. illicit 
connections madSJ; iA the past regardless qf whether the connection 
was nennissible under law or mactices awlicable or prevailing at the 
time of conm~ction. 

3. A person· is considered to be in violation of this ordinance if the 
nerspn connects a line conveying sewage to the M~fl. or allows such a 
connection to continy.s;, 

4. lmoroper connections in violation of this ordinance must be 
disconnected and redirected. if necessarv. to an approved 
onsite wastewater management system or the s~tarv sewer system 
upon approval of the T ovwn. · 

5. Any drain or conveyance that has not been documented in plans. 
maost or equivalent. and which may be connected to the storm sewer 

' mte:m. shall be located PY the owner or ' occupant of that 
proq~rtV upon receiot of \vritten notice of violation from the Town 
requiring that such locating be CQIDJ)leted. Such notice will specifv 
a reasonable time neriod within which the location of the drain or 
conveyance is to b)! determined. that the drain or conveyance be 
identified as storm sewer. samtarv sewer or other. and thatthe outfall 
location or ooint of e,9nnection to the storm sewer system. sanitary 
sewer system or other discharge point be identified. Results of tlJ!ise 
investigations are to be documented and provided to the Town. 

Section 5-6-7 WATERCOURSE PROTECTION 

Every person owning property through ~hich a watercourse passes. or such oerson's 
lessee. shall keep a;nd maintain that part of the watercourse within the property free of 
trash. debris. excessive vegetation. <md other obstacles that.. would pollu~. 
contaminate, Q{ significantly retard the flow of water through the watercourse. In 
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addition1 the owner or h;ssee shall maintain existing privately owned §tructure~ 
· within or adjacent to a watercourse, so that . such structures will not become a 

hazard to the use. function .... or physical integrity of the watercourse. 

Section 5-6-8 INDUSTRIAL QR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY 
DISCHARGES 

A. Submission of ADEQ Notice pf Intent Certificate to Town of Carefree 

1. All owners/operators of construction activities. new or regevelo~ 
· land. and·· industrial and commercial facilities §hall minimize the 

discharge of pollutants to the MS4 through the installation. 
implementation. and maintenance of stormwater control measures. 

. . 
2. Any person subiect to an industrial or cQnstruction activity NPDES 

storm water discharge pennit shall comply with all orovisio;ns of 
such peffilit. Proof of comoliance with said permit may b~ 
reauired in· a ·form acceptable to th~ Town prig[ to the allowing of 
discharges to the MS4. 

3, The operator of a facility. including constrµction sites. required to 
have an NPDES ,Rernrit to discharge stonn water associated with 

:industrial or construction activity shall submlt a copv of th~ 
certificate provided by ADEQ C"ADEQ Notice_ of Intent Certlficate"l 
to · construction site operators. granting coverage under the 
Constnwtion General Permit. to the Town at the same time th~. 
operator submits the Qriginal ADEO Notice of Intent Certificate to the 
EPA as applicable. 

4. A person commits an qf(ense if the person operates an induS!Jjfil 
facility or construction site that is discharging storm water associated, 
with the industrial or construction activity without having submitted a 
copy of the ADEO Notice of Intent Certificate to do so to the Tl)wn. 

~~tion 5-6-9 COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

A. Right of Entry: Inspection and Sampliqg 

The Town sball be permitted to enter and inspect facilities subject to 
regulation under this· ordinance as often as may be necessary to determiye 
compliance with this ordinance. 

1. If a discharger has security measures in force. which require 
proper identification and clearance before entry ip.to its premises. the 
discharger shall make the pecessarv arrangements to allow access to 
representatives of the Town. 
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2. Facility operators shall allow the Town ready access to all parts of 
the premises for the Purposes of inspection. sampling. examination 
and copying of records that must be kept under the conditions of an 
NEDES pennit to discharge storm water. ood th¥ performance of 
.any addition duties as defined by state and federal law. 

J. The TOV\11 shall have the right to set up on any permitted facility 
such devices .as are necessary in the oninion of the Town to conduct 
monitoring and/or sampling of the facility's storm water discharge; 

4. The ·Town has the right . to require the discb~,rner to install 
monitoring equipment as nece§§arv. The facility's samnling and 
mogitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and 
proper operation condition by the discharger at its own expense. All 

·devices used to measure storm water flow and quality. shall be 
calibrated to ensure their accuraci 

5. Any temporary or oennanent obstruction to safe and easy access 
to the facili:ftJo be inspected and/or samnled shall be promptly 
removed bv the operator at the written or oral request of the Town 
and shall not be replaced. The costs of such access shall be borne by 
the onerator. 

6. Unreasonable delays in allowing the Town aCcess to a permitted 
facility is a violation of a ·storm water discharge permit and of 
this ordinance. A oerson who is the operator of a facility with 
an WDES pern:iit to discharge storm water associated with and · 
industrial or constru.ction activity commits an offense if the neraon 
denies the Town reBjionable access to:the permitted facility for the 
purpose of conductiou any activity authorized or required by this 

B. Sear.ch Warrant§ 

. . . 
If the Town has. been refused access to run; part of the premises from which 

· storm watyr pollution is discharged, and he/she is able tg ·demonstrate 
orobable cause to believe that there may be a· violation of this ordinance. or 
that there is a rieed to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine inspection 
and samnling program designed to verify compliance with this ordinance or 
DDY order issued hereunder, or to nrotect . the overall public hea}th, 
safetv, and welfare of the community. the Town may seek issuance of: a 
search warrant fiom any court of competent jurisdiction. 

Section 5-6-10 · IYtOUIREMENT IQ PREVENT. CONTROL, AND 
REDUCE STORMWATER POLL UT ANTS BY TIIE USE OF BEST 

·MANAGEMENT PRACTICES. 

The Town will adopt requirements identifying Best Management Practices for an 
activitv. o p e r at i o n , o r facility. w h i c h m a y c a u s e o r contribute t o 
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pollution or contamination of storm water, the stgrm drain system. or waters 
· of the United ·states. Tue owner or. onerator of such &}Ctivity. operation. or facility 
shall provide. at their O\Vll exoense~ reasonable proteetion from accidentpl dischar~ 
of prohibited materials or other wastes into the muillcipal storm drain svstem or 
watercourses thro:ugh the use of these sti:uctµral and non-§J;mctural .§MPs. Furthet; . . 
any person responsible for a propeqy or premise that is, or may be, the · sowce 
of an illicit dis9parge. n:iay be requireyj to implement. at said persons expense, 
tldditional structural and. non-structural BMPs to orevent the further discharge of 
oollutants to- the MS4. Compliance with all terms aJ:ld conditiops of a valid NPDES · 
oermit {!Uthorizing the discharge of storm water 8§§0ciated with the industrial or 
construction activityn to the extent practi~$hali be deem,ed compliance with the 
orovisions of this section. These · BMPs shall be part .. of a Storm water 
management plap fSW1v1P) as necessm. for compliance with the requirements of 
the NPOES permit. 

Section 5=6-11 · NOTIFICATION OF SPILLS 

A. Notwith.:;;tandjng other requirements of law. as soon as any per~on 
responsible for a facility or oneratiQD.. or responsibl!; (or emergency resoons~ 
for a facj[ity or operation has information of any known or suspected release 
of materials which a.re resulting or may· result· in illegal discharges . or 
pollutants discharging into storm water, the storm drain system. or water§ 
gf the United States1 said person shall take all necessacy steps to ensµre the 
discovery, conta.inrirent. and cleanup of such release. 

B. In the . eyent of such a release of hazardous materials said . oerson shall 
immediately notify emergency response . agencies of .the occurrence vu1 
emergency dispatch sgyices. 

C. In the event of a release of non- hazardous materials, said person shall notify 
the To"1n in oorson or by phone or facsimile gg later tijan the ne!lt business · 

·daYz_ 

1. · Notifications in person ·or by phone shall be ·confirmed by written 
notice addres§ed and piailed to. the Town ·wit.hill two business davs of 
the phone n2tice. 

2. If the. discharge of prohibited materials emanates from a 
commercial. industrial. or constructign establishment or activity. :tru. 
o\\ner ... or operat9r shall also retain an on-site written record . of · th~ 
dischijgge and the actions taken to prevent its recurrence. 

D. · Failure to provide notification of a release as provided above is a violation of 
this Ordinance. 
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Section 5..(i..12· VIOLATION~, ENFQRCEMENT. AND J!ENALTIES 

A. Violations 

It ~hall be tin.lawful for any nerson to violate any provision or fail to comgl,x 
with any of the requirements of this ordinance. Any ·person who has 
violated or continues to violate the provisions of this ordinance. may 12£. 

· subject to ·the enforcement actions outlined_jn this section or may be 
restrained by iniunction o~ otherwise abated in a manner provided by law. 

In the event the violation ·constitutes an immediate danger to public 
health or public safety. the Town is authoQ±ed to enter upon the subiect 
property, without giving nrior notice. to take any and all measures necessary 
to abate the violation ai:ldlor re~tore the property. The Town is· authorized 
to seek the costs of the abatement as outlined in Section I Z. 

B. Notice of Violation 

Whenever the Town finds . that a person bas violated ·a · prohibition or 
failed to meet a requirement of this ordinance, the.. Town may order 
compliance bx written notice of violation to the resoonsible person. · 

C. Compensatory Action 

In lieu of the enforcement proceedings. peDalties. and remedies authorized by 
this ordfuance. the ToWri may impose uoon a violator alternative 
compeitsatorv action such as storm drain stenciling. att~dance at compliance 
workshQPs. wash cleanup. etc. 

D. Susnension of MS4 Access 

1. . Emergency Cease and Desist Or.dm 

When the Town finds that any person has violated. or continues to 
. violate. any provision of this ordinance, ·or any order issued 
hereunder. or !hat the person's oast violations are likely to recur, and 
that the persons violatiQn{s) has (have) caused or contributed to an 
actual or threatened discharge to the MS4 or waters of the United 
States which reasonably appears to present an imminent or substantial 
endangerment to the health or welfare. of persons or to the 
environment, the Town may issue an order to the violator directingit 

· immediately to cease and desist all such violation and directing the 

a Immediately comply with all ordinance requirements; 
~ 
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b. Take such appropriate preventiye action as ma:v; be needed 
. to orooerly address a continuing or ·threatened· violatign, 
including immediately halting ooeration.~ and/or tenninating 
the discharge, · 

Any oerson notified of an emergency order directed to it under this 
Subsection shall immediately comply and stop or eliminate its 
endangering discharge. In the event of a discharger's failure to 
immediately coinply voluntarily' with the emergency order. tbe To!;\11! 
mav ti!ke such steps as· deemed necessary to prevent or minimize 
hmm to the MS4 or waters of the United States. and/or endamiennent 
to nersons or to the environment. including immediate termination of 
a facility's water suooly. sewer conriection. ·or other municipal utility 
sezyjces. The Town may ·a11ow · the person to · recommence its 
discharge- when it has . demonstrated to the satisfaction o:f the ToWn 
that the period of endangemient has oassed. unless further tennination 
proceedings are initiated against the discharger under this ordinance. 
A person that is resoonsjble; in whole or in part. for any discharge 
presenting imminent endangerment . shall submit a detailed written 
stateinent. · describing the causes of the harmful ·discharge and the 
measures taken to prevent any future occurrence. to the Town 
within five (5) days of receipt of the emergency order. Issuance 
of an emergency ceaSe and desist order shall not be a bar against or a 
prerequisite for, tak.ing any allier action against the violator .. 

2. SuspeQBion Due to Illicit Dischauies in Emergencv Situation§ 

The Town may. without prior notice. suspend MS4 dischame access 
to ·a person when such suspension is necessary to stop an. actual or 
threatened· discharge. which .presents or may present imminent and 
substantial danger to the environment. or to the health or welfare of 
person. or· to the MS4 or waters of the United· States. lf the violation 

·fails to comply With a suspension order i~ued in an emergency. the 
Town may take such steos as deemed neeeS§MV to prevent QI 
niinimize dm:page to the MS4 or waters of the United States .. or 
ill....minimi~e danger ti;) persons. 

3. Suspension Due to the Detection of Illicit Discharge 

a. Any · person discharging to the MS4 in violation of this 
ordigance may . have their MS4 access tenninated if such 
termination would abate or reduce an illicit discharge. The 
Tnwn will notify a violation of the prooosed termination of its 
MS4 · access. The violation may petition the T oW;n for a 
recogsidem.tion and hearingy 
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b, A person commits an offense if the 11£'rSon reinstates MS4 
access to premises terminated pursuant to this Section. witb~ 
the prior approval of the Town. · ' 

E. Civil Penalties 

In the event the alleged violation fails to take the remedial mea.Sures ~et 
forth . in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure Jhe violation . 
-d~scribed therein within five (5) days. or such greater period as the Town 
· filml.l deem appropriate. after the ToWn has taken one or more of the actions . 
descdlwd above, the Town mav impose a penalty not to exceed §even 
.hundred and fifty dollars ($750.00) (den_ending on the severity of the 
violation) for each dax the violation remains unremedisrd after receipt of the 
notice of violation. 

· Section 5=6· 13 APf~AL OE NPTICE OF YJOLATION. 

~rso1.:L.receiving a Notice of Violation may anpeal the detennination of the 
Town. The notice of appeal must be received within five (5) days from the date of 
·the Notice of Violatfon. HAA£Wg on the aooeal before the Town Administrator or 
bis designee shall take place within: five (5) days from the date of receipt of the 
notice of appeal, The decision of the Town Administr~tor or their design@ sha]l be 
fmal. · 

Section 5-6:14 · ENFORCEMENT MEASURES AFTER APPEAL 

If the violation has not been corrected pursuant .tg· the requirements set forth in the 
Notice of Violation. or. in the event of an ·appeal. within five (5) cmys of the 
decision of the Imm Administrator or his designee uoholrJillg the decision of.the 
Town, then "representatives of the Town shall e!!ter upon the subject Private prooerty 
and ·are authorized to take any and all measures necessarv, to abate the violation 
and/or restore· the propertv. It' shall be unlawful for any person. owner. agent or 
person in possession of any premises to refuse to allow.the goverilmental agency or 
designate contractor to enter upon the premises for the pumose~ set forth above. 

Section 5-6-15 COST OF ABATEMKNT OF THE VIOLATION 

A. Notwithstanding any other provision of ·this Chapter. when a nuisance. 
source of pollution or cause of siekness exists on private nrooertv. the Town 
shall order the owner or occuimgt to remove it within twenty-four (24) hours at 

. the expense of tlie owner or occupant. The order may be delivered to the 
owner or occupant· in the same manner as provided foe service of oroce~§ 
under the Arizona Rules of Civil Procedure. If the order is not complied 
-with, the Town in addition to any other remedies allowed under this Chanter 
shall cause the nuisance. source of oollution or cause of siekness to be 
remQved. and expenses o[ removal shall be paid by the owner.· occupant or 
other person »;ho caused the nuisance. source of filth or cause of sickness. 
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· B. Any nuisance as defined in this Chanter may be agated as provided in 
Chapter 6. Offenses, Section 6-2-2 of this.Code. 

Section 5-6-16 VIOLATIONS DEEMED A PUBLIC NUISANCE 

In addition 12 the enforcsment process and penalties provided. any condition caused 
m:._pennitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of tills ordinance is deemed 
to be a threat to public health. safety. and welfare. and is declared and deemed ·a 
nuisance. and may be summw:;ily abated or restored at the violator's expense. anQ/Qr 
a civil action to abate. enioiu,. or otherwise compel the cessation of such nuisance 
W!!Y be taken; · 

Seetion 5-6-17 REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE 

The remedies listed in . this .ordinance are not. exclusive of any other remedies 
available under any applicable federal. state or local law and it is within the 
gjscretion of the Iown tg seek cumulative remedies. 

The Town may recover all attomevs' fees. s:.ourt costs and other expenses associated 
with enforcement of this ordinance. includiuli sampling and monitoring expenses. 

Section 4: ff any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of 
this Ordinance or any part of the amendments of this Ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision 
of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

Section 5: The immediate operation of the provision of this Ordinance is 
necessary for . the immediate preservatiQn of the public peace, 
health and safety; and emergency is hereby declared to exist; and 
this ordinance shall be effective. immediately and in full force and 
effect from and after its passage, adoption and approval by the 
Mayor and the Common Council of the Town of Carefree as 
required by law. 

Section 6: The Town Clerk of the Town of ·Carefree shall incorporate the 
Amendment set forth herein in to the Town of Carefree Zoning 
Ordinance, Carefree, Arizona. 
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PASSED, ADOPTED AND .APPROVED BY THE MAYOR -AND COMMON 
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CAREFREE, .ARIZONA, this 4th day of 
September, 2018. 

Ayes _6_ Noes _£ Abstentions _!J!_. Abs~nt _L_ 

TOWN OF CAREFREE 

Les Peterson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Ordinance #2018-02. TC Mtg. 9/4/2018 14of14 


